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1. Name of Property

historic name Beck & Beck Granite Shed

other names/site number Beck & Beck Granite Works

2. Location

street & number 30 Granite Street
not for publication _______
city or town Barre______________
state Vermont

vicinity
code VT county Washington code 023

zip code 05641

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, I hereby certify that this x nomination____
request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic
Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property__x__meets

does not meet the National Register Criteria. 1 recommend that this property be considered significant 
nationally___statewide__ x_ locally. (___See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Signature of certifying official/Titl^
ni>

Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property____meets ___ does not meet the National Register criteria. (___ See continuation sheet for additional
comments.)

Signature of commenting or other official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau
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4. Natio^ Park Service Certification

(Page 2)

1 hereW certify that this property is:

V entered in the National Register, 
 See continuation sheet.

 determined eligible for the 
National Register.

See continuation sheet.
determined not eligible for the 
National Register, 
removed from the National 
Register
other (explain); __________

feignature of Keeper Date of Action

5. Classification

Ownership of Property (Check as many boxes as apply) 
X private

____  public-local
___public-State

____ public-Federal

Category of Property (Check only one box)
X building(s)

____  district
____  site
____  structure
____  object

Number of Resources within Property

Contributing
2

Noncontributing
buildings
sites
structures
objects
Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed in 
the National Register

Name of related multiple property listing (Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.) N/A
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6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (Enter categories from instructions) 
Cat: Sub:

INDUSTRY

Current Functions (Enter categories from instructions) 
Cat: COMMERCE/TRADE Sub:

Manufacturing facility

Department store

7. Description

Architectural Classification (Enter categories from instructions)
Other: granite shed ________

Materials (Enter categories from instructions) 
foundation Concrete
roof Sheet steel
walls Vinyl

other

Narrative Description (Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria (Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for National Register 
listing)

X A Property is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history.

_____ B Property is associated with the lives of persons significant in our past.
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___  Piopeif/ has yielded, or is likch, to -oic'd informatic.o i;v.r;Oitar.t in prehistory or history.

Ci tP nu Con.vi.Iorations (Mark "X" in all the boxes that apph';

1.‘r

owned h> a religious institution or used tor religious purposes.

13 remo .'ed from its original locadcn.

___ a mrthplaee or a grave.

0 a cemetery.

E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.

_ i a commemorative property.

G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance within the past 50 
years.

Areas of Signltliiance (Enter c.ategories from instructions)
Architecture

Industry

Period of Significance _

Significant Dates

1898-1960

1898
193.3

Significant Person (Complete if Criterion B is marked above)
N/A

Cultural Affiliation

Architect/Builder

N/A

Unknown
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9. Major Bibliographical Reference,s
—_;~ir

Bibliography
*;Citc the books, articles, and other sources used in prqwi Jpg this fomt or* -one or more continuation sheets.) 

Previous dijcumcntation on file (NPS)
_____preliminary determination of individual listing 36 CFR 67) has been requested.
____  previously listed in the National Register

previously determined eligible by the National Register
____ designated a National Histone Landmark

recorded by Historic Ameriean Buildings Surv-ey #___________________
___ recorded by Historic American Engineering Record //

Primary Location of Additional Data
__ State Historic Preservation Office
____  Other Slate agency

Federal agency
_____ Local government
___ University

Other
Name of repository: _ ___________

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Propoity 0.60 dues

{J fM References (Place additional UTM references on a contin-iation sheet)

Zone 
1 18 
2

Easting 
489681 IN

Northing Zone
699260E 3 ____

4

Fasting Northing

_ _ _ See continuation sheet.

Vei'oal Boundary Description (Describe ttie boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.) 

Boundary Justification (Explain why the bemdaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

11 Form Preparr il By

name/title Johii Johnson _ _ _ ___

Organization _ _______________

street & number 5378 Hollister Hill Road

date March 30, 2011 

telephone ___ 802-426-3411

city or town Marshfield state _ VT zip code 05658

Mary Jo Lle’vellyn 802-456-1202 
Log I'own Road 
Woodbury, Vermont 0.5681
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Additional Documcnlai ion

Submit the following items with the completed form:

Clontinuation Sheets 

Maps
A uses map (7 5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.
A sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.

Photographs
R.epresentati ve black and white photographs of the properly 

Additional items (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner

(Complete this item at the request of the SHPO or FPO.) 
name 28 (.lianite Street LLC ________

street 8i. number 30 Granite Street telephone 802-477-7800

city or town Batre______ state VT /ip code 05641

Paperwoik Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to 
nominate properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is 
required to obtain a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation .Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including the time for 
reviewing instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden 
estimate or any aspect of this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P .0. Box 37127, Washington, DC 
20013-7127; and the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Project (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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Physical Description of the Beck &JBeck Granite Sh^
(Numbers in this section correspond to numbers on the attached Site 
Plan)

Summary

The Beck h Beck Granite Shed was constructed in 1933 and is an 
excellent local example of the rectangular, straight-shaped design 
representatiye of wood frame granite sheds (aka granite factories) in the 
early 20* centuiy in Vermont. It is a tall, single story, 30’ x 175’, 13 bay 
building, with a gable roof and long side walls. The character-defining 
band of horizontally-oriented, clerestory windows on the side walls is 
intact (although currently not visil^le from the'exterior). Shed additions 
extend from the long sides of »:he rectangle. A gabled Office (#2) is 
attached at the nortli eleyation facing Granite Street and an earlier retail 
Store (#22) is connected on ibe west elevation, The open interior has an 
independent heavy timber frame that supports an overhead traveling 
crane The Marker Storage Shed, a former multi-bay shed roofed garage 
(#24) is the only detached building. The area east of the building was an 
open storage area for large granite blocks and is now an open parking lot. 
The Granite Shed is located in a mixed residential, commercial and 
industrial area, and is near the Socialist Labor Party Hall (listed on the 
National Register on October 22, 1998 and listed as a National Historic 
Landmark on May 16, 2v900) that served granite industry workers. 
Although vinyl siding obscures some building details, the Beck and Beck 
Granite Shed retains integrily of location, design, setting, materials, 
workmanship, feeling and association.

Physical development of the property

In 1933, an earlier, frame granite shed was razed on this properly 
for construction of the present, straight-shaped Granite Shed (#1). The 
Beck and Beck Granite Shed is comprised of a long rectangular, gable- 
roofed 1-story main block with a wide, gable-roofed, centrally located
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west side ell and a narrow, low-pitched shed-roofed east side ell that 
projects from the main block at an angle towards the southeast. The 
Shed was constructed in two parts and is 30 feet wide by 175 feet long. 
The first phase of construction resulted in 5 bays and the second phase 
resulted in completing the extant shed with 8 additional bays. The 
building is currently sheathed in vinyl siding, but underneath, the 
building retains the original wood clapboards and pressed metal siding 
formed to imitate clapboards. 'I'he latter is exposed on the former north 
exterior wall of the west ell.

The front (north) portion of the main roof is defined by a broad 
clerestory level. The cierestoiy extends along the east elevation from the 
northeast building corner to approximately 19 feet south of the angled ell 
at which point the plane of the clerestory becomes the main wall plane. 
On the west elevation the clerestory extends from the northwest front 
building corner to the interior corner of tlie main block and the west ell. 
The ridge of the clerestory is not centered on the gable-front north wall of 
the main block; therefore the roof slopes below the clerestory are of 
dissimilar lengths. A symmetrical clerestory defines the roof of the west 
ell.

The Granite Shed (#1) rests on a poured concrete wall. The roof, 
which has been built-up with added insulation, is covered with sheet 
metal. Non-historic fascia boards have been added to the built-up roof, 
but the historic fascia and soffit have been retained and are enclosed 
within rhe added roof package. Most of the exterior walls are covered 
with vinyl siding that has obscirred door and window openings and 
historic siding and trim. The north and east walls of the east ell are 
covered with vertical boarding. Historic clapboard siding has been 
retained on the main block’s north gable end and the northern portion of 
its west elevation; the wmdow openings in this section are boarded over.

The east elevation of the Granite Shed’s (#1) main block is defined 
by a wide, full-height loading bay door opening (#18) in the second bay 
from the north. The opening is covered by a gable-roofed extension of
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the wall plane that rises above the lower roof to the clerestory eave and is 
filled witli a non historic overhead door. There is a non-historic man 
door and a small rectangular wdndow in the interior corner of the east 
elevation of the main block and the north elevation of the east ell. The 
remainder of the east elevation is solid, as is the south elevation.

The main block’s west elevation also features a historic loading bay 
door opening (#20) in the second bay from the rear. The opening is filled 
with a historic wooden door made of vertically-oriented tongue and 
groove boards on the exterior and wide horizontal planks on the interior 
and is protected from roof run-off by a small gable-shaped roof pediment 
t;hat sits on the eave.

The east-side ell is four bays wide on its north elevation. The third 
bay from the left is filled by a man door; the other bays are filled with 
long rectangular window openings. The south elevation is lit by three 
evenly-spaced similar non-historic rectangular windows The east gable 
end is solid.

The south elevation of the west side ell is five bays wide. The 
fourth bay from the left is filled with a man door, The remaining four 
bays are filled with rectangular windows. A similar single window is 
located in the south corner of the w'est gable end. Otherwise the west ell 
is solid.

Despite the installation of vinyl exterior siding and assorted non- 
historic interior finisiies, it appears that the 9/9 main wall windows and 
the 6-light clerestory window’s are still in place in the main block behind 
the added material. Several of the windows are visible wdthhi the wall 
plane, several other,-, have been intentionally exposed. Sections of the 
original fascia and soffit are also vivsible, encased within the added roof 
trim.
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The interior of the Granite Shed (#1) is open in plan and 
distinguished by its huge voluminous spa<-e. The only intrusion to the 
original open plan is the non historic office space that has been 
paititioned off in the eastern half of the east ell. Elsewhere, the building 
exhibits the straightfoiward, rough, industrial characteristics of a granite 
processing facility. Most of the lightly framed exterior walls are now 
insulated and sheet-rocked, but many major members of the wall frame 
are still exposed. The roof frame is a series of wooden trusses and steel 
connecting rods. Much of the underside of the roof has been insulated 
and sheet-rocked, although framing members remain visible. The 
original dirt floor was later covered in uneven levels of concrete; now it 
has a pounid concrete floor witli radiant heating.

After the lightly-framed walls of the shed were completed, an 
additional independent interior heavy timber frame was built to carry an 
overhead traveling crane (#5). It has diagonally braced posts that are 
canted or slightly tipped on the west side and vertical on the east side. 
The posts support horizontal wood blocks that in turn carry plate beams 
that run the length of the interior. Rails for the traveling crane are 
mounted on the beams. A secondary timber frame is outside of and 
Joined to the west system at r.he top of the posts; its vertical posts abut 
the bottoms of the canted posis. The 5 ton Northern Traveling Crane (#5) 
was installed in November 1933 when the present Shed was completed.

Fir st Company Office and Bla-ksmith Shop

I'he 1933 Granite Shed is physically connected to two earlier 
buildings historically associated with the Beck and Beck Granite 
Company. The 1933 shed was constructed against the r-ear (south) wall 
of a C.1900 clapboarcied. wood-framed gable-front building that housed 
the Beck arid Beck Gra/jiie Company’s First Office (#2) and Blacksmitli 
Shop (#3) and that is new referred to as the “Old Office”. The roof of the 
First Company Oftice is orvered with early 20^^ century sheet metal. The
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east roof eave of the small building over-hangs the wall and is supported 
on angled brackets. The west roof slope is significantly longer than the 
east slope. A foundation change on the north gable elevation helps to 
identify the nature of the activities that occurred historically inside the 
building. The eastern two-thirds of the wall are supported on a poured 
concrete foundation while the western third is supported on a short laid- 
up stone wall. The portion of the building that is supported on the 
conci’ete wall served as the finished office space. The Blacksmith Shop 
(#3) is located in the space covered by the longer west roof slope.

The door and window openings in the First Company Office (#2) 
are historic. There are thiee symmetrically spaced window openings 
above the concrete foundation and a single window, located lower in the 
wall plane, above the stone wall on the north elevation. The clapboards 
and skirt board on the elevation step down at the stone wall. The east 
elevation features a door and three window openings. There is a single 
rectangular window tight up under the eaves in the extreme south corner 
of the west wall. All the openings are boarded over. The heavily 
damaged, dapboarded rear wall of the First Company Office is exposed 
within the cavernous space of the 1933 Granite Shed.

The plan of the First Company Office (#2) is for the most part 
apparently historic, consisting of a front and rear room. An undefined 
small mid-space suggests that a section of wall may have been removed. 
Although this structuo.: retains some plaster ceiling, acoustical tiles have 
been added elsewhere. Vvalls are now covered with sheet lock and non- 
historic paneling. All but one window are boarded over on the inside of 
the building as well as the outside. The single exposed 2/2 sash in the 
south wall is in r'air condition, The Blacksmitti Shop (#2) is open in plan 
and unfinished. It w'f's m use until 1935.

A tall, rectangi.ilar, shed-roofed Dust Collector (#4) that rises to 
almost the heigh!- of the Granite Shed’s roof peak is located in the
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intxnor corner of its north wall and the west wall of the First Company 
Office. The clapboarded Dust Collector (#4) is not shown on the 1925 
Sanborn Map but does appear on the 1939 map. The Dust Collector is 
open in plan and is unfinished. A cylindrical metal hopper for wood 
pellet storage was recently installed in front of the Dust Collector.

Store/Storage (#22)

About 1915, Beck Ss Beck constructed a detached 1 V2 story frame 
Storage building (#22, formerly known as 34 Granite Street) and it was 
used as a retail Store facing Granite Street just west of the First 
Company Office (#2). About 1965 this building (#22) was connected by a 
narrow corridor (#23) to the Granite Shed (# 1) at 28 Granite Street. The 
detached building was constructed by Beck and Beck in 1932 and leased 
to the Dawson-McDonald Company, a retail granite supply business, 
until 1963. The one story, narrow, rectangular gable-roofed building, 
now referred to as a Store, fronts on Granite Street west of the First 
Company Office (#2).

The Stole/Storage (#22) is roofed witti early 20<-h centuiy sheet 
metal and features a historic brick ridge chimney. Some of the building’s 
original poured concrete foundation has been replaced with concrete 
blocks. Historic clapboard siding has been retained on the east elevation; 
the remainder of the building is covered with vinyl siding. The gable- 
front north elevation features a centered entry door that is flanked by 
single windows. The east elevation is lit by five rectangular windows. 
There six irregularly spaced rectangular windows on the west eave 
elevation and a rear entry door in the southwest corner of the south 
elevation. The majority of the rear elevation is covered by the shed roof 
of the added boiler room. The door and window openings in the Large 
Office do not apji'car to be histoiic. The building is joined to the 1933 
Granite Shed by a non-historic connector (#23) between its east elevation 
and the west elevation of the shed. The historic plan and fimslics in this
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structure are not intact. The building is open in plan. All historic 
tinishes have been removed.

Marker Storage Shed (#24), c.1933 Contributing

Included in the complex of industrial buildings is a c.1933 shed- 
roofed former automobile garage located immediately east of the east vi^all 
of the First Company Office (#2). The 1939 Sanborn Fire Insurance map 
indicates that the garage was constructed to hold six cars, but the 
eastern three bays of the dirnensionally-framed building have been 
removed. The garage retains its early 20^^ century sheet metal roof but is 
also covered with vinyl siding. A historic, vertically-oriented, narrow 
board sliding garage door on a historic track hangs in an opening in the 
eastern bay and provides the only access into the garage. The garage is 
open in plan. The east wall is not historic and was apparently 
constructed when the eastern three garage bays were removed. Metal 
exterior siding formed to appear as clapboards and now covered with 
vinyl is visible on the inside of the unfinished garage. The 1939 Sanborn 
Map also indicates that the Garage is siding with “iron”.

Inventory of the Granite Shed

The following is an inventory of the spaces, machinery and 
equipment in March 2009 when the Granite Shed (#1) had ceased 
operation as a granite works. The inventory was taken to document the 
special arrangement of the existing machinery and to illustrate how the 
shed functioned as a gremite processing factory. (See the Site Plan for 
locations.)

1. Granite Shed (1933) The shed is a long, wood frame structure (30’ x 
175’) with 13 bays. The shed was constructed in two pha.ses. The first 
phase of construction resulted in 5 bays and the second phase resulted 
in completing the present shed with 8 additional bays. After the exterior 
walls of the present shed were completed an additional timber frame, 
with plate beams on top of canted posts, was constructed on the interior'
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of both long sides of the shed to install the tracks for an overhead 
traveling crone (#5).

2. First Company Office (historically known as 28 Granite Street) (c. 
1905). The 1 Va stoiy frame building (18’ x 27’) with basement and attic 
faces the street. The basement has toilets and a Rockwood Sprinkler 
System (Model C, 6 V), manufactured in Worcester, MA, The pump has 
patent dates 1919, 1927 and 1938; there is a 175 lbs. pressure tank. 
Water is supplied from a water main under Granite Street. The first floor 
was the company’s office with drafting tables and a bathroom. A pull­
down staircase leads to the attic that was used for record storage of 
business records and drawings.

3. Blacksmith Shop (c. 1900). The room is a single story, frame addition 
on the west elevation of the Office (#2). The shop has a modern, cinder 
block chimney with a forge in the middle of the room. There is a sirigle 
line shaft suspended from the ceiling that is driven by an electric motor. 
A large pulley supplied power to a trip hammer (now removed) that was 
bolted to the exterior of (#2). Another pulley still operates a bench-type 
grinding machine sitting on the forge. Underneath a large, fixed window 
on the west wall is a long bench with a bench vise and. Assorted tools 
include a floor mounted anvil and a grinding machine.

4. Dust Collector (c, 1933). Tall frame addition on the west elevation of 

the Blacksmith Shop (#3).

3- Traveling Crane (1933). This original crane was cab controlled and is 
now ground controlled. This 5 ton capacity, elecbic powered crane 
travels the length of the Granite Shed (#1) on rails and the crane spans 
(22’ 6”) across the: open space This crane was manufactured by the 
Northern Engineering Works of Detrc-it, Ml.

6. Truveling Ciane (date unknown, after #5). This 5 ton, electric ground- 
controlled, Roi.v - (#2371) crane travels the length of the Granite Shed (#1) 
on the same tracks as (#5),
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7. Boiler Room (1936) The single story frame structure was added to the 
west elevation of the Granite Shed (#1). This room has a Fitzgibbons ‘P 
Series’ portable, return tubular, up-draft, firebox boiler. The fuel for the 
boiler was originally coal and was later converted to oil. It is still used to 
supply steam heat to registers in the building. The boiler was 
manufactured by the Fitzgibbons Boiler Company of Oswego, NY.

8. Sullivan Compressor The space, originally the coal storage bin for #8, 
now has a compressor manufactured by the Sullivan Machine Company 
of Michigan City, IN., capable of 125 lbs. of pressure.

9. Compressor Room (1929) the room is part of the addition (#11) on the 
west elevation of the Main Granite Shed in bays 7 8s 8. The room has a 
class VCCE’, 3-cylinder, two-stage; universal volume air compressor 
manufactured by the Bury Compressor Company of Erie, PA. The 
compressor is powered by a 50 HP Western Electric Motor. The ceiling 
has single, steel I beam for hoisting parts of the compressor. This room 
also has a large Compressed Air Storap Tank (1929) manufactured by 
the Pennsylvania Boiler Works of Erie, PA and another compressor 
manufactured (1971) by Ingersoll Rand Company of New York. The room 
also has a machinist workbench with vise in the northeast corner.

10. Sprinkler Svstenj (1937). The water pump and pressure tank in the 
basement of the Office (#1) supplies water to an extensive overhead, steel 
pipe, sprinkler system throughout the Granite Shed (#1).

11. Tool Sharpening and Polishing Room. Located on the west elevation
of Bays 6 7 of die Gianite Shed (#1). This room had sandstone
grinding wheels for sharpening stone carving tools and also had 
polishing .tTiacbines There is still a small ceiling-mounted, electric hoist 
for lifting hea\^^ grinding wheels.

12. Sand Blast Shaping Room Located in the northwest coiner of (#11), 
This small, enclosed, frame room was used by operators with shaping
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7. Boiler Room (1936) The single story frame structure was added to the 
west elevation of the Granite Shed (#1). This room has a Fitzgibbons ‘P 
Series' portable, return tubular, up-draft, firebox boiler. The fuel for the 
boiler was originally coal and was later converted to oil. It is still used to 
supply steam heat to registers in the building. The boiler was 
manufactured by the Fitzgibbons Boiler Company of Oswego, NY.

8. Sullivan Compressor The space, originally the coal stoi age bin for #8, 
now has a compressor manufactured by the Sullivan Machine Company 
of Michigan City, IN., capable of 125 lbs. of pressure.

9. Compressor Room (1929) the room is part of the addition (#11) on the 
west elevation of the Main Granite Shed in bays 7 86 8. The room has a 
class VCCE’, 3-cylinder, two-stage; universal volume air compressor 
manufactured by the Bury Compressor Company of Erie, PA. The 
compressor is powered by a 50 HP Western Electric Motor. The ceiling 
has single, steel I beam for hoisting parts of the compressor. This room 
also has a large Compressed Air Storap Tank (1929) manufactured by 
the Pennsylvania Boiler Works of Erie, PA and another compressor 
manufactured (1971) by Ingersoll Rand Company of New York. The room 
also has a machinist workbench with vise in the northeast corner.

10. Sprinkler System (1937). The water pump and pressure tank in the 
basement of the Office (#1) supplies water to an extensive overhead, steel 
pipe, sprinkler system throughout the Granite Shed (#1).

11 • Tool Sharpening and Polishing Room. Located on the west elevation 
of Bays 6 8& 7 of the Granite Shed (#1). This room had sandstone 
grinding wheels for sharpening stone carving tools and also had 
polishing machines. There is still a small ceiling-mounted, electric hoist 
for lifting heavy grinding wheels.

12. Sand Blast Shaping Room Located in the northwest corner of (#11). 
This small, enclosed, frame room w”as used by operators with shaping
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21. Sandblast Generator (c. 1960) An enclosed structure mounted on the 
exterior of the south wall.

22. Store/Storage (c. 1915, historically known as 34 Granite Street) The 
1 Va story frame structure (26’ x 73’) faces Granite Street.

23. Connector (c. 1965) The single story frame structure (4’ x 15’) with 
sheet metal roof was constructed as a narrow passage way to connect # 1 
to # 22.

24 Marker Storage Shed (contributing building) The single story frame 
structure was used for marker storage. This building was originally a 
frame, six-bay garage facing the street.

25 Granite Yard The exterior space north of the shed, originally had a 
Boom Derrick (now removed) for transporting granite from railroad cars 
on the adjacent siding to the yard. It is now a parking lot.

Despite the visual loss of most historic exterior materials, fenestration 
pattern and roof profile, the historic form and massing of the 1933 
Granite Shed, including its character- defining clerestory level, as well as 
the form and massing of its two earlier appendages, is nearly unaltered. 
Importantly, it is apparent that the original siding and wall and 
clerestory windows are still in place, underneath the current vinyl siding.
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Summary

The Beck 8& Beck Granite Shedi, located in Barre, Vermont, known 
as the ‘Granite Center of the World’, was constructed in 1933 and is an 
excellent local example of the rectangular plan, straight shed design 
representative of wood frame, granite sheds (aka granite factory) in the 
early 20^^' centuiy in Vermont. The property qualifies for inclusion in the 
National Register of Historic Places under Criterion A for its 
contributions to the patterns of Vermont industrial histoiy and 
specifically the state’s historically important granite industry. This 
German-American family-owned granite manufacturing company 
operated from 1898 until 1960. The success of the Beck & Beck 
Company contributed to making Barre the chief center for granite 
production in the world. The property also qualifies under National 
Register Criterion C as an important example of industrial architecture 
constructed for a specific purpose. This granite shed was designed to 
facilitate the efficient processing of granite blocks into granite cemetery 
monuments. The functional building plan of the rectangular, straight- 
shaped shed took advantage of the technology of overhead traveling 
cranes for moving blocks of granite in a very large unobstructed space. 
The property has a local level of significance.

Historic Context for the Granite Industry in Barre

Prior to the Civil War, granite quarries were opened on Cobble Hill 
and Millstone Hill in East Barre, only 4 miles from downtown Barre. 
From 1833-37, these quarries supplied architectural elements for the 
famous Vermont State Capitol in Montpelier. Granite is the hardest and 
most durable of the building and monumental stones and is the most 
difficult to quarry and to finish. Following the Civil War, quarries 
installed boom derricks and small frame sheds supported a growing class 
of stoneworkers. Block sawing machines were introduced, as well as 
water-powered grinding and polishing equipment. These simple work 
spaces evolved into permanent granite sheds The arrival of the railroad 
in 1875 put Barre Gray granite on the map and the industry began a
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boom period. In the 1880s granite monuments began to replace marble 
monuments that had earlier replaced slate monuments. The industry 
expanded with the introduction of steam-powered boom derricks, steam 
drills, traveling cranes, electric power and pneumatic tools. The railroad’s 
‘skyline’ granite cars united the quarries with processing sheds in 
downtown Barre. The convergence of inventions and innovations in 
granite working machinery with dependable heavy-rail transportation 
made local stone competitive in the monument trade in the late 19* c.

During the industry’s boom period from 1880-1910 Barre was the 
state’s fastest growing working-class city; population increased from 
2,000 to 10,000. Immigrants were eager to apprentice the granite trades. 
By 1900, ninety percent of the skilled and unskilled work force formed 
15 labor unions that became important both socially and economically. 
Unions and management were often conflicted over wages, hours and 
working conditions. Barre’s industrial landscape formed in contrast to 
the ubiquitous rural agricultural landscape that characterized the state 
at the turn of the 20* century. Artists, craftsman and sculptors excelled 
at commemorative and memorial art in the monument trade; architects 
featured granite in the design of buildings. Industrial progress in all 
sectors of the industry, quarrying, manufacturing and retail, combined to 
make Barre the center of the granite culture in Vermont. It was into this 
historic context that the first German immigrants came to Barre, the 
Beck family.

Beck Family and the First German Irnmit^r ants to Barre

Konrad Fleck (1837-1901) and his wife Anna Boupser (1837-1898) 
emigrated from Germany to America in 1884 and later settled with their 
seven children in St Johnsbury, Vermont. In St. Johnsbury this Beck 
family jomed three single male relatives that were living in the factory 
village and employed as blacksmiths by the famous Fairbanks vSeale 
Works. Born into a traditional German family of iron workers, Konrad 
was also a blacksmith and by 1897 joined his male relatives at 
FairbanV-S.'"
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In the mid 1890s the ‘boom period’ in the Barre granite industry 
was well underway and immigrants were coming from Europe and 
Canada looking for employment and the prospect of beginning a new life 
in America. The first German immigrants to arrive in Barre were two 
cousins, Konrad Beck’s fifth son Werner E. Beck (1873-1916) and his 
cousin Lnthar C. Beck (1872-1928), Werner and Lothar arrived in 1890. 
Seventeen year old Werner apprenticed for six years at a small granite 
shed established in 1885 by Charles H. Kenerson 86 Company. Eighteen 
year old Lothar apprenticed the stonecutting trade from Charles H. More 
85 Company who had established a granite cutting shed in 1886 in 
Burnham Meadow. Typical of the immigrant experience for young single 
apprentices in the granite industry, both W'erner and Lothar lived at 
boarding houses in Barre until 1899.'^

In 1896 the partnership of Beck 85 Beck formed when Werner and 
Lothar rented space in Charles H. Kenerson’s granite shed. In this 
property acquisition they were joined by Werner’s older brother John 
Arthur Beck (1869 1943) a blacksmith by trade. A blacksmith shop and 
small granite shed had been started c. 1884 at this location on Granite 
Street by W. Moses Warley. In 1887 the property with “stone sheds, 
derrick and stone tools” was sold to Arzo D. Morse, first president of the 
Barre Railroad (1888). Morse sold the property to Lothar Beck, Werner 
Beck and John Beck in 1898. The Beck &, Beck Company continued to 
Operate a granite manufacturing business at this site until 1960. The 
period of historical significance for the Beck & Beck Company at this 
property is 1898-1960.5

In 1896 Lothar married Mary Anna ‘Maria’ Loeffler (1867-1956) 
and in 1900 Werner married Anabella Lowery^ (1874-?). In 1899, within 
three years of fonning their partnership, Kenerson sold Werner and 
Lothar Beck a ‘'double tenement house” at 19 and 21 Bra.nch Street 
where the partners were within walking distance of granite shed on 
Granite Stieet. When Lothar and Maria Beck’s sons Wendelin iJ, (1897- 
1976) and Charles L. (1899-1985) came of age they both apprenticed in 
their fathet’s granite business. The third business partnei, John A. Beck,
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was employed as a blacksmith by Fairbanks Company as early as 1901. 
In 1902 John married Margaret M. McF'arland (1877-1929) and they 
lived in St. Johnsbury with their son Andrew Conrad (1913-?). In 1913 
John sold his “one-third interest” in the two Barre properties to his
cousins.'

Lothar’s oldest son Wendelin married Freda Hill (1897-1994) in 
1917 and their third son Norman (1926-present) continued in the family 
business. Lothar’s second oldest son Charles married Katherine Brown 
(1903-1990) in 1924 and their second son Paul (1927-2010) also 
continued in the family business. Werner Beck died in 1916 at the age of 
42 and the company was managed by Lothar Beck until his death in 
1928 at the age of 56. In 1928 Lothar’s widow Maria, along with 
Wendelin as manager and Charles as superintendent, continued to 
oversee the operations of the Beck & Beck Company. The company first 
advertised with a logo in the Barre City Directory in 1931 and Charles 
became President and Wendelin became Vice President in 1932. Their 
sister Lucy U. (1901-1986) became the company secretary and their 
sister Frieda M. (1905-2000) married Joseph O. Calcagni (1903-?) in 

1933.7

Historical development of the property

The following statement of the development of the property is taken 
primarily from Sanborn F'ire Insurance Maps, interviews and field 
observation of the extant Granite Shed (#1) constructed in 1933. Similar 
to granite sheds throughout Barre, structures on the property were 
altered many times to accommodate expansions, new power sources, 
changes in machinery and equipment, or increased production demands.

On this pic'iierty in 1884 or earlier thci*e was a single story, frame 
Blacksmith Shop on the east side of Granite Street and a detached 1 
story, frame granite shed dircctl}- behind the shop. By the time Beck & 
Beck acquired the property at 28 Granite Street in 1898, the existing 
granite shed had been expanded wath a single story, frame addition on
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the southeast elevation and a single story, frame addition on the 
southwest elevation. By 1900 the property was identified on the Sanborn 
Map as the ‘Beck 8& Beck Granite Works’, They added electricity and by 
1905 had replaced the old shop facing the street with the present 1 V-?. 
stoiy frame Office (#2) that still has an addition on the west elevation 
that was a Blacksmith Shop (#3). Also by 1905 a single story, frame 
Polishing Mill had replaced the two earlier additions to the Granite Shed 
and there was a single story Cutting Shop added to the southeast 
elevation. 8

By 1910 the property had expanded to the southeast toward the 
railroad spur track of the Central Vermont Railroad. Part of the original 
Granite Shed had been converted to a second Blacksmith Shop; the 
Polishing Mill had been ex[5anded and contained an Electric Motor; 
another single story, frame addition had a 90 h/p Air Compressor; and 
another single story, frame addition had an Electric Motor to power the 
Hoisting Gear, that was used to power the Boom Derrick in the yard 
adjacent to the railroad track. Another single story, frame addition was 
used for Storage and it extended within just a few feet of the railroad 
track. There was also a detached, single story, frame building that held 
the electric motor for the Boom Derrick.^ This incremental expansion was 
typical of successful, medium-sized granite processing companies in the 
final decades of the 19’^^ c. and early decades of the 20* c. in Barre .

In 1932 Beck 85 Beck leased their adjacent a 1 V2 story frame 
storage building (#22, built before 1925 and formerly known as 34 
Granite Street.) just west of the Office (#2) facing Granite Street. The new 
tenant was the Daw son-McDonald Company that had similar retail 
stores in Boston, New Yoric City, Chicago and Pittsburg. Dawson- 
McDonaid was a granite supply business that specialized in tools and 
equipment for the granite industry and continued to lease the budding 

until 1963.10
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Despite the stock market crash of 1929 and the Great Depression 
of the early 1930s, the Beck family continued to expand their family- 
owned granite monument business and in 1932 the company became a 
Vermont corporation. In 1932, when Charles Beck became president and 
Wendelin Beck became vice-president, the company began an expansion 
progiam. ^ ^

Evolution of Granite Shed Architecture in Vermont

This section of the statement of significance develops the historic 
context for evaluating the evolution of granite shed architecture in 
Vermont. Illustrating examples from Barre, that developed into the chief 
granite producing center in the world, this nomination adds to the 
Industry and Commerce Theme developed in the Vermont Historic 
Preservation Plan. The Beck & Beck Granite Shed is significant in the 
areas of industry and architecture. ^2

In the 18th and early 19^^^ century, stone masons and farmers 
harvested glacial boulders and outcrops of exposed bedrock (surface 
ledges) from local forests and fields. Granite rock was split and blocks 
were hauled to a local barn or stone shed on an ox or horse-drawn stone 
boat or blocks were hauled on a sled during winter months. Granite was 
worked into foundation stones, steps, sills, lintels, hearth stones, as well 
as fence and hitching posts. The smallest granite companies continued to 
use small, frame sheds well into the 20** century. However, as granite 
working developed into an industry, larger companies began to apply 
technology to improve the efficiency of granite manufacturing with 
derricks and cranes to lift and move heavy blocks of granite. Derricks 
and cranes dictated the shape of commercial granite sheds: the ‘round­
shaped shed’, the ‘horseshce-shaped shed’ and later the ‘rectangular­
shaped, straight shed’. Granite sheds were typically plain, unpainted, 
post-and-beam, wood sided buildings constructed by local builders. An 
all-male workforce made the primitive work environment somewhat 
tolerable in a largely-unheated granite shed
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To l>e eco.ii-n-niorrlh' coropeUtJVT; with the softer and easier-io-wcih 
liraesLoiie ajiu marble iridusiiies •''' Vminon!, the grarsic industrr' rn 
Barre depended on innovations in powered equi])mer<t -o lower 
ir-anufactvamg costs and iric.rease production, Folicwing early induerrial 
models established by ihe grist , saw and textile mills, early granite sheds 
were typically sited at a dam on a river where a waLenvheei or turbine 
supplied power via shafts and belts to various groniic vvorking machinee. 
The introduction of steam engines freed the granite sl.ieds from the sitv^ 
constraint of rivers. The low value-to weignt rario ui granite meant that 
transportation costs made up a comparatively large port ion ot the selling 
price. Hence, sheds were located on or near railroad tracks and a spur 
track was constructed to each shed to provide luw-co-'t la.l transport. 
Beck & Beck saw the potential of the downtown Granh.e Streel looahon 
as ideal; it was on an existing spur track of the Cenrral Vermont Icanroad 
that had arrived in Barre in 1875. Also locaJing iti lua-’n n'lsured a good 
supply of single family hmases and boarding houses for single rr:ale 
workers. The quarries on Milestone Hill, located 3 tmie.'-. soeiiheast of the 
town of Barre, also had accommodations for '.marty iv-^rkers and tuese 
quarries were connected to the granite sheas m town oy the Barte 
Railroad in ISSQ.i'’

There is only one surviving example of toe round shaped granite 
shed, the historic Emery L. Smith Granit'-"’ Shed (188d) on Burnham 
Street This frame, round-shaped, sixteen-sided, shed is 70' in diameter 
with a unique hoisting system, a ciniifai' version of the overhead 
traveling crane. Here a horieont.al bridge, above ihe hoor,
supported at its inner end by a center post ar..b at its outer end it travels 
on a circular iron track set on tht^ large '"(.•oo. pLad-bet-'ns of tli« shed. 
The combined motion of the crane and motion of a carriage along the 
bridge allows the delivery of large bk-:ks *0 aoy v'C'rb .-/LatjOT' ju the shtd. 
This was an early granite shed vhcsign and one granite inciustry hislorian 
claimed that it was the only one j.i the courir r
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Between the 1870s and the 1890s the most common style of 
granite shed was the horseshoe-shaped shed, a frame, gable roof 
building with segmented parts that roughly followed an arc of a circle. 
There is one surviving example, the historic Emslie & McLeod Granite 
Shed (c. 1890) on Blackwell Street. A tall, wood derrick was erected at 
the center of the yard and it had a boom long enough to deliver granite 
blocks from the railcars to the shed, which had a series of large doors.

Until 1933, the first granite shed occupied by Beck & Beck was a 
horseshoe-shaped shed with a boom derrick in the yard between the 
shed and the railroad spur track. The derrick consisted of a vertical mast 
held upright with guy ropes and a boom that was hinged at the bottom of 
the mast. A fall rope with a granite hook was reeved over the tip of the 
boom. The mast could be rotated and the boom raised and lowered so 
that the hook could reach any point within a circle whose radius was the 
length of the boom, up to 80 '. The reach of the derrick defined a circular 
yard that was used to store granite blocks prior to their finishing inside 
the shed and later their shipping on the adjacent railcars. Stone workers 
had to manually move the stones inside the shed to the stone cutters 
bankers (work benches); although some early sheds had doors in the roof 
so that a derrick with a long boom could place a stone down through the 
doors and directly onto a banker,

The watershed in the architectural evolution of granite shed design 
came in the 1880s with introduction of a powered, overhead traveling 
bridge crane. The cranes were powered first by steam engines and later 
by electric motors. In the granite industry, the early powered overhead 
cranes used an endless loop (1,000’) of manila rope (1 Vi” inch) driven by 
a steam engine or electric motor. The earliest flying-rope cranes 
consisted of a timber bridge that spanned the shed’s center aisle and 
traveled the length of the shed on tracks set on top of the plate beams of 
the shed walls. These early ‘flying rope’ cranes were dangerous and prone 
to failure The next major unpiovement was the elimination of the rope 
and the introduction of the electric motor. The two-motor crane, 
introduced in the late 1890s, had one motor that drove the bridge and
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another that drove the cairiage and the hoist. Modern cranes are 
powered by three motors, one each for the bridge, carriage and hoist; and 
have a drop or radio control that allows a single person on the shed floor 
to load and unload the hook, as well as operate the crane. This 
development necessitated a long, rectangular or straight-shaped building. 
A carriage, containing the crane’s hoist and operator’s seat, moved on 
parallel tracks the entire length of the shed. The hoist raised and lowered 
a hook that carried granite blocks throughout the open space of the shed.

By the late 1890s and early 1900s, the overhead crane was 
standard machineiy in newly built sheds and the old round-shaped and 
horseshoe-shaped shed designs became obsolete. In some shed designs 
the traveling crane extended through openings in the gable ends to an 
exterior storage yard. Shed extension could be accomplished by adding 

bents to either end.

Overhead traveling cranes were the most important technology 
that led to the design of the dominant style of the granite production 
shed, the straight shed. Traveling cranes were not commonly used in 
America until the last quarter of the 19* century. An experimental 
electric-powered crane installed in 1888 has earned the reputation of 
being the first of its kind used in America and within two decades they 
were available from several crane manufacturers. Commercially 
manufactured cranes available in the 1880s were stronger than earlier 
models and had more iron components and improved gearing. Traveling 
cranes worked well only when they were well balanced, absolutely stable 

and free from vibration.

Cranes served the center aisle and side aisles became essential 
components of industrial building design. The tasks of supplying granite 
slabs, moving operations along, and positioning granite at work stations 
(bankers) were centralized in the crane operator. “These new factories, as 
the engineers envisioned it, became part of production technology, 
helping to solve problems that stood in the way of efficient mass 
production. Owners and engineers developed these rational factories in
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two stages: first they mef:l\anized distinct, individual operations as a way 
of increasing productivity or reducing skill requirements; then they 
standardized and regulated the entire production process from the 
moment when raw' materials entered the factory until the finished 
product left. They accomplished those ends by redesigning the factory 
and introducing mechanized materials handling.” During the boom 
period in the Vermont granite industry, new granite sheds were 
constructed as rational factories were designed and “powered for
profit”. 17

The first traveling crane in the Barre granite industry may have 
been erected in 1884 as a yard crane, suspended on roof-mounted tracks, 
between two long, straight-shaped granite sheds at the Marr and Gordon 
Company, i® Beginning in the early 1890s, traveling cranes were 
manufactured locally by the famous Lane Manufacturing Company 
(listed on the National Register as part of the Montpelier Historic District 
on November 3, 1978) and were in use throughout the Barre granite 
industry. Lane’s rope drive cranes (c.l892) boasted a capacity of 20 to 40 
tons and beginning in 1911 they produced a two-motor, electric crane, i^

Also, wherever space permitted on the property, granite companies 
constructed detached frame buildings for mechanical surfacing machines 
(large, noisy and dusty), air compressors (very noisy), steam boilers (fire 
hazard), and coal-fired blacksmith forges (fire hazard).

The Beck 6& Beck Granite Shed

In 1933 Beck 86 Beck constructed this rectangular-shaped, straight 
granite shed (30'x 175’) to take advantage of the standard techhology of 
overhead cranes. The Jones Brothers Granite Shed (75’ x 290’) in Barre 
is another excellent example of a straight-shaped shed that operated two 
cranes in the main shed from 1895-1975. The Jones Brothers Shed 
(1895) was the first granite shed in Vermont to be listed on the National 
Register of Historic: Places on April 26, 2002.-2^^ The straight-shaped shed



FuJTP iC-S«.'0*8 (8*86)

o.VLAth>wu.N:-. l0k4-0x)iS

United States Denart«;*jn^ of th^ Inter ior 
National Park Service

National Register ot Historic Piaces
Continuation Sheet

Section number 8 Page

became ubiquitous, the pages of the Sanborn Maps are filled with sheds 
of this type and there are numerous extant examples in Barre.

The Beck 8s Beck Shed is a tall, main building, with a gable roof 
and large gable-end or side v/all doors, and shed additions that extend 
from the bays on the long side of the rectangle. The fine hand operations 
of stone cutting, lettering, and caving require good light and that 
necessity dictated continuous rows of large fixed window's in the side 
shed walls and clerestory fixed windows above the side shed roofs. On 
cloudy days or late winter afternoons, a row of reflector lamps with 500 
watt incandescent bulbs were hung under the ridge pole to supplement 
natural light. This straight shed with a single, undivided space offered 
flexibility in the layout and use of the machineiy and operations 
throughout the factory. Side sheds created additional work space.

Machinery was often rearranged as new machines wei’e brought in 
and obsolete machinery was moved out. Overhead cranes were designed 
for spans up to 50’ and capacities up to 40 tons. In 1933 Beck 86 Beck 
installed a crane to span 22’ 6” that could lift 5 tons and later a second 
crane also with a capacity of 5 tons. Both of the cranes at the Beck 86 
Beck shed are controlled by a drop control.

The stonecutters worked at stone working machinery located in the 
side aisles/additions to the shed. Occasionally, a machine was so large 
that one of the shed posts had to be removed to provide the needed space 
and a steel rod truss had to be installed for support in place of the 
removed post. The Beck 86 Beck shed had a post removed between Bays 
6 86 7 on the w^est elevation and another removed between Bays 3 85 4 in 
the side shed that was used as a Tool Sharpening and Polishing Room 
(#11). These two steel trusses are evidence that thivS modification was 
made to accommodate the installation of large machinery like polishers. 
Since the shed originally had a dirt floor, machinery' was mounted on 
wood or concrete bases. Other machinery was suspended from the shed
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beams; for example, the electric operated, steel beam hoist still in 
or mounted on columns supporting the shed roof.

The entire shed was serciced by a network of pipes, ducts and 
ditches. Pipes, lunning the length of the shed supplied water to cool tool 
working surfaces, to wash away cuttings, and to keep down the dust. 
Other pipes supplied compressed air to operate pneumatic tools and 
machinery and supply steam to radiators. Numerous ducts throughout 
the shed provided hot air for heating or suction for the removal of 
airborne dust. A network of ditches in the dirt floor carried away waste 
water. All of these systems with water jiipes, steam pipes, and ducts for 
dust collection are still m evidence in the Shed. The dirt floor has been 
totally covered with concrete.^’

The Beck 8& Beck factory was a medium-size granite cutting shed 
that employed about 2.‘c men engaged in finishing and sand blasting to 
manufacture a variety of carved and polished monuments for cemeteries. 
The company did not ov.n their own granite quarry in Barre nor did they 

operate a retail operaunn.

Expansion of the Peck N. Beck Company

Novelli & Calc.^gni was a granite manufacturing company that 
began operations with Samuel Novelli and Joseph G. Calcagni in a 
granite shed near the intersection of Blackwell Street and Center Street 
that had been acquired by Calcagni and Corti in 1906, Lothar and Marie 
Beck’s third daughter, Freida M. Beck rnanied Joseph C. Calcagni in 
1933 and their famines were joined in the granite business. In 1938 
Frieda’s brother Wendelin Beck became Piesident ol the granite shed that 
was constructed for Wove*11 Calcagni in 1924. That shed was 
completely destroyed by fire m 1944. fn 1945 the Beck fis Beck Company 
expanded with the acquisition of the Novelli 66 Calcagn' pioperty at 41 
Center Street in Bane City and constmeted a shed that became known 
as Beck 86 Beck’s Plant no. 2 2-
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Beck 86 Beck’s Plant No, 2 (Centtn* -.vas engrtged >n “aavving,
polishing and contour work, with a special emphasis on the production 
of larger work” while Plant No 1 (Granite Street) was “engaged principally 
in finishing and sandblast work”. Beck 8& Beck’s Plant No. 2 produced a 
wide variety of granite products from many colors of granite. In addition 
to monuments they produced pre-assembled and walk-in mausoleums, 
shrines, veteran’s memorials, etchings and granite products for 
industrial, commercial and residential purposes. In the late 1940s and 
1950s the company had retail representatives in Paw Paw, MI; Cincinnati, 
OH; Quincy, MA; Dallas, TX; N. Charleroi, PA; Chicago, IL; Madison, NJ; 
and iJanesville, WI; later Nashville, TN and Chatham, NJ. Beck 86 Beck 
continued operations at Plant No. 2 until 1993.23

In 1960 Charles Beck retired and his brother Wendelin Beck 
became President, a position he held until his death in 1976. Under 
Wendelin’s management. Beck 8& Beck decided to leave Plant No. 1 and 
entered a lease agreement witli an option to buy with Charles 86 Paul 
Trottier and Douglas Letourneau doing business as Twin City Custom 
Sandblasting Company. The tenant Dawson-McDonald continued to 
operate the retail granite supply store at 34 Granite Street until 1963. In 
1969 Twin City fulfilled the terms of the prior agreement and purchased
the property.24

In 1969 Beck 86 Beck sold the Granite Street property with Plant 
No. 1 to 'Twin City Custom Sandblast Company, who continued a granite 
business at this location. In 2006 Twdn City sold the granite business to 
Buttura 86 Sons and in 2009 the property was sold to 28 Granite Street 
LLC. The property is now leased to ReSOURCE, a recycling company with 
headquarters in Burlington, Vermont.^s

In 1975 the Jones Brothers Granite Shed, the largest granite 
manufacturing company in Barre, went out of business. Beck 8& Beck 
secured the rights to use the Jones Brother’s famous ‘Guardian’ 
trademark, one of the strongest warranties in the manufacture of granite 
monuments, to market monuments to retailers from Plant No, 2,26
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Prominent work of the Beck 8s Beck Company included the Gumming 
Mausoleum (1979) at the Hope Cemetery (1895) in Barre.^'^

Following the death of company president, Wendelin Beck in 1976, 
his son Norman became president and Charles’s son Paul became vice- 
president at Plant No. 2. When Norman and Paul Beck retired in 1985, 
Norman’s son-in-laws, Robert Zider and Robert Hilferly stepped into the 
roles as president and vice president. In 1990 the Beck 86 Beck Company 
filed Chapter 11 it its first bnash with bankruptcy. In 1994 the company 
ended their 98 year legacy as the oldest family-owned granite business in 
Barre. Forty employees were terminated and the Lyndonville Savings 
Bank coordinated the liquidation of assets to satisfy nearly $3 million in 

debts. 28

Conclusion

Tlie 1933 Beck and Beck Granite Shed meets criterion A and is 
historically significant because of its association with the Beck and Beck 
Granite Works in Barre, Vermont and with the world class granite 
industry in Barre. It illustrates the development of the local granite 
industry through development of individual granite sheds where the raw 
stone was processed and finished by stonecutters and carvers, usually 
emigrants from Europe and Canada.

The Beck and Beck Granite Shed also meets Criterion C and 
remains an excellent example of the straight shed type of granite shed, 
with intact historic form and massing, although vinyl siding has covered 
the historic exterior materials. Importantly, it is evident that the 9/9 wall 
and 6-light clerestory windows and the historic wood clapboard and 
pressed metal siding are in place behind the vinyl on the main block, as 
are the gable-end windows on the west ell. The non-contributing 
materials can be removed, revealing a ‘straight shed’ sheathed with wood 
and lit by continuous bands ol tall wall and clerestory windows. The 
original roof soffits and fascia are also preser\’ed beneath the added
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roofing. Installation of the non-historic covering may have damagea the 
historic materials but its existence provides good physical evidence about 
the original appearance of the Beck and Beck Granite Shed.

' The Sanborn Maps refer to this property as the Beck & Beck Granite Works.
^ Hathaway, Richard O. “The Granite Workers of Barre, 1880-1940”; Baton, Todd, The Rock of Ages Story, 
Wood, Paul, “Tools and Machinery of the Granite Industry”; Gove, Bill, Sky Route to the Quarries.
^ “The Beck Family Tree”, typescript, copy from Norman Beck; St. Johnsbury City Directory, 1881 -2-3, 
1883, 1885, 1889, 1891,1893, 1895-96, 1897, 1897-98, 1901; Vital Records, Town Clerk’s Office, St. 
Johnsbury. Note: in family genealogy (Konrad) and in Vital Records and City Directories, (Conrad).
* Bielenberg, Kristina L and Karen I.ane. Barre Vermont: An Ethnic Bouillabaisse, p. 2; Brayley, Arthur W. 
History of the Granite Industry in New England, pp. 75-76; Waite, L. P. Barre City Directory, 1890/1891, 
1893/1894, 1895/1896; 1897/1898; 1899; “Barre, VT”, Birdseye Maps, 1884 and 1891; Historical 
Souvenir of Barre, 1894, pp. 92-93; Jeffrey, William H. The Granite City, Barre, Vermont, p. 47;
Industries and Wealth of the Principal Points in Vermont, p. 165; Barre Town, Land Records, Book 5, Page 
219(1899).
^ Barre Town, Land Records, Book 20, Page 29 (1881); Barre Town, Land Records, Book 22, Page 340, 
(1887); Baire City, Land Records, Book 5. Page 114 (1898); Bane City, Land Records, Book 76, Pages 73- 
78, (1960), Book 85, Pages 515-517, (1969).
^ Vital Records, Town Clerk’s Office, City of Barre; Vital Records, Town Clerk’s Office, City of St. 
Johnsbury; iSt. Johnsbury City Directory, 1901.
^ Barre City Directory, 1900 to 1914, 1929; Barre Town, Land Records, Book 9, Page 516 (1914), The 
duplex on Branch Street is still standing.
* Sanborn Maps, Barre, Vermont, 1884, 1889, 1900, 1905.
’ Sanborn Maps, Barre, Vermont, 1910, 1916, 1925.

Barre City Directory, 1932, 1963.
“ Barre City Land Records, Book 43, page 305.

“Industry and Commerce I’heme”, Vermont Historic Preservation Plan, VT SHPO, 1989.
’’ Gage, Mary and James Gage. The Art of Splitting Stone: Early Rock Quarrying Methods in Pre- 
Industrial New England, 1630-1825, typ. 10-14.

Jones, Robert C. and Whitney J Maxfield and William G. Gove. Vermont’s Granite Railroads: The 
Montpelier & Wells River and the Barre & Chelsea, pp. 40-63; Gove, Bill. Sky Route To The Quarries: 
History of the Barre Railroad, “Railroad Track Layout, 1894, pp. 24-25 and 1916, pp. 68-69.

Gove, Bill. Sky Route to the Quarries, pp. 11,23.
Gove, p. 24; Allen, p. 9.

” Bradley, Betsy. The Works: The Industrial Architecture of the United States, pp. 98-104, 107; Biggs, 
Lindy. The Rational Factory: .Architecture, Technology and Work ia America's Age of Mass Production, p. 
2.

Photograph dated 1884, Vermont Granite Museum of Barre.
" Lane Manufacturing Co.”, The Vermont Watchman-Souvenir Fdition. Montpelier, 1893, pp. 39-40.
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“ Burwell, Miranda P. and Liz Pritchett. ‘Jones Brothers Granite Shed’, National Register Nomination, 
listed on the NRHP in 2002.

Wood, Paul. “Tools and Machinery of the Granite Industry, Parf II”, pp. 81-86; “Part III”, pp. 130-131, 
137-139, 151.

Brayley, pp. 57-58; City of Barre, Land Records, Book 14, pp. 414; Book 29, pp. 210; Book 56, pp. 91- 
92,

Monumental News. December 1949, February, 1957, p. 5; Barre City Directory, 1904, 1925,1932, 1994; 
Sanborn Maps, 1910, 1925-1948.

City of Barre, Land Records, Book 76, Pages 73-78 (I960); Book 85, Pages 515-517 (1969)
“ City of Barre, Land Records, Book 234, Page 659-660 (2006); Book 255, Page 685-686 (2009).

Burwell, Miranda P. and Liz Pritchett. ‘Jones Brothers Granite Shed’, National Register Nomination, 
listed on the NRHP in 2002.

Allen, p. 40.
“Beck & Beck, Inc. Observes Its 90* Anniversary”, Barre Summer 1986; Beck & Beck to 

liquidate its assets”, Burlington Free Press, April 9, 1994; “Beck & Beck Fails To Avoid Bankruptcy”, The 
Times Argus, April 11, 1994.
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Bibliography for Beck 8s Beck Granite Shed 

Collections:
APL = Aldrich Public Library, Bane
BGA= Barre Granite Association, Barre
DHP= VT Division for Historic Preservation, Montpelier
SJA = St. Johnsbuiy Athenaeum, St. Johnsbuiy
UVM = Special Collections, University of Vermont, Burlington
VGM = Vermont Granite Museum, Barre
VHS = Vermont Historical Society, Barre

Allen, Donald G. Barre Granite Heritage, (Barre, VT: The Friends of the 
Aldrich Public Library, 1997). APL

“Barre, VI'”, Birds Eye Maps (Brockton, MA: George E. Norris, 1884, 
1891). VHS

Barre City Directories, 1898-1969. BGA

Barre Granite Association and the Granite Cutters International 
Association, Barre Branch. Apprenticeship Standards, Granite Industry, 
Vermont, (Barre, VT; BGA). VGM

“Beck 8s Beck Granite Shed”, Photograph, c. 1912. APL

“Beck 86 Beck”. Monumental News. March, 1938. BGA

“The Administrative and Office Personnel of Beck 8& Beck, Inc of Barre”. 
Monumental News, September, 1949. BGA

“Beck 86 Beck, Inc. of Barre”. Monument^ News, February, 19vS7. BGA

“Beck 86 Beck . . . and Beck 86 Beck”, Barre Life. Summer, 1982. BGA 
(photograph of former Noveili 8& Calcagni granite shed on Center Street 
and photograph of Beck 86 Ber k granite shed on Granite Street)
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“Beck & Beck, Inc. Observes its 90^^ Anniversary”, Barre Life, Summer 
1986. APL

Bielenberg, Kristina L. and Karen Lane, “Barre, Vermont: An Ethnic 
Bouillabaisse”, Barre Heritage Studies Project, (Montpelier, VT: Vermont 
Department of Education, 1978). APL

Biggs, Lindy. The Rational Factory: Architecture, Technology and Work in 
America’s Age of Mass Production. UVM

Blake, Marion, “Barre Chronology: 150 years Activity”, t5rpescript, 1943. 
APL

Bradley, Betsy. The Works: The IndLlstnal Architecture of the United States. 
(New York: Oxford, 1999). UVM

Brayley, Arthur W. History of the Granite Industry of New England, 
(Boston, MA: National Association of Granite Industries of the United 
States, 1913). APL

Burwell, Miranda P. and Liz Pritchett. ‘Jones Brothers Granite Shed’, 
National Register Nomination, 2002. VGM

Clarke, Rod. Carved in Stone: A History of the Barre Granite Industry, 
(Baire, VT: Rock of Ages, 1989) APL

Demers, Paul. “Interview with Charles Beck”, August 22, 1972. APL

Demers, Paul. “Labor and the Social Relations of the Granite Industiy In 
Barre” (B. A. thesis, Goddard Ci^llege, 1974). APL

Fox, Gerald B. “Beck tk Beck Granite Sh^d Pat.)ers: Inventoiy and 
Preservation Recomnrendations”, Typescript, 2000. A
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Gage, Maiy and James Gage. The Art of Splitting Stone: Early Rock 
Quarrying Methods in Pre-Industrial New England, 1630-1825. (Amesbuiy, 
MA: Powwow River Books, 2002). VGM

Gove, Bill. Sky Route To The Quarries: History of the Barre Railroad, 
(Williamstown, VT: Quaiiy View, 2004). VHS

Hathaway, Richard O. “The Granite Workers of Barre, 1880-1940”, 
Michael Sherman and Jennie Versteeg, ed. We Vermonters: Perspectives 
On The Past, (Montpelier, VT: Vermont Historical Society, 1992). VHS

Historical Souvenir of Barre, (Nickerson Ss Cox, 1894). APL, VHS

Industries and Wealth of the Principal Points of Vermont, (New York, NY: 
American, 1891). APL

Jeffery, William, ed. The Granite City, Barre, Vermont. (Concord, NH: 
Rumford, 1903). APL

Johnson, John P. “Heritage in Stone: A Guide to Interpreting The Culture 
of the Granite Industry in Vermont”. (Barre: Vermont Granite Museum, 
2002.

Jones, Robert C. and V/hitney J. Maxfreld and William G. Gove. 
Vermont's Granite Railroads: The Montpelier & Wells River and the Barre 
& Chelsea. (Boulder, CO: Pruett, 1985). VHS

Llewellyn, Mary Jo, “Historic Preservation Certification Application, Part 
1”. DHP

Paton, Todd. The Rock of >\ges Story, (Bar re, VT: Rock of Ages, 2003), APL

Rosa, Alfred and Mark Wanner, ed. Men Against Granite, (Shelburne, VT: 
New Er>gland Press, 200'^). APL
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Rosner, David and Gerald Markowitz. Deadly Dust: Silicosis and the 
Politics of Occupational Disease in Twentieth-Century America, (Princeton, 
NJ: Princeton University, 1991). UVM

Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps, Barre, Vermont, 1884, 1889, 1894, 1900, 
1905, 1910, 1916, 1925, 1925-1960. UVM

St. Johnsbury City Directories, 1881-2-3, 1883, 1885, 1885-86, 1889, 
1891, 1893, 1895-96, 1897, 1897-98, 1901, 1904, 1907, 1909, 1910-11, 
1912-13, 1915. SJA.

Strong, Marjorie. Guide to the Manuscript Holdings of the Archives of 
Barre History, (Barre, VT: Aldrich Public Library, 1997). APL

The Vermont Watchman- Illustrated Souvenir, 1893. VHS

Wood, Paul. “Tools and Machinery of the Granite Industry” l-he Chronicle 
of the Early American Industries Association. Vol. 59, No. 2, June 2006; 
“Tools and Machinery of the Granite Industry, Part II”, Vol, 59, No. 3, 
September 2006; “Tools and Machinery of the Granite Industry, Part III”, 
Vol. 59, No. 4, December 2006; “Tools and Machinery of the Granite 
Industry, Part IV”, Vol. 60, No. I, March, 2007. VGM

Wood, Paul, “The Architecture of the Granite Shed”, Times Argus. 
November 5, 2007. VGM
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Geographical Data:

Verbal Boundary Description:

The nominated property is the same as that known as Barre City Tax Parcel # 0685-0028- 
0000 and Vermont SPAN # 036-011-19288.

The property at 30 Granite Street is 0.60 acres and contains one large granite shed (with 
additions, for a total of 12,468.5 Square feet) and one detached building (see Site Plan).

Boundary Justification:

The nominated property is the lot historically associated with the Beck and Beck Granite 
Shed.

UTM reference.

1.
Zone
18

Easting 
489681 IN

Northing
699260E
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Beck & Beck Granite Shed

The following is the same for all photographs:

Beck & Beck Granite Shed
Barre, Washington County, Vermont
Photographs by John Johnson, March 2009

A CD with digital images is on file at the Vermont Division for Historic Preservation. 
Photos printed with Epson Premium Glossy Photo Paper.

Photograph
1. Along Granite Street with Office on right and Marker Storage Shed on left, facing 

south.
2. Parking Lot with Marker Storage Shed on right and Granite Shed on left, facing 

northwest.
3. Granite Shed, facing west.
4. Sandblast Generator ou right and Granite Shed on left, facing north.
5. Sharpening and Polishing Room on right and Store on left, facing north,
6. Store/Storage Room, facing southeast.
7. Overhead Crane on top of timber support frame, facing south.
8. Sand Blast Blowing Room, facing south.
9. Granite markers ready lor shipment, facing east.
10. Supporting beams and rafters; framing.
11. Historic photo “Beck & Beck, Inc., Barre, Vermont, No. 1 Plant, 28-34 Granite 

St.”, Barre Directory, p. 260. (1949).
12. Historic photo; 1913
13. Monumental News, 1938; interior and exterior photos
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